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MEMORANDUM FOR: Lori Michalski, Chief Human Capital Officer 

Sonya Gaither, Director of Employee & Labor Relations, Office of 

the Chief Human Capital Officer 

Damon Smith, General Counsel 

 

FROM:  Salvatore Viola, President, AFGE Council 222 

 

SUBJECT: Unfair Labor Practice Grievance of the Parties: C: Drive Data 

Collection 

 

Pursuant to Article 51, Sections 51.01(2), 51.01(3), 51.04, and 51.15 of the 2015 HUD-AFGE 

Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) and the Federal Service Labor-Management Relations 

Statute (Statute) at 5 U.S.C. § 7103(a)(9)(B) and (C), § 7121(b)(1)(C)(i), and § 7116(a) and (d), 

AFGE National Council 222 of HUD Locals (Council 222 or Union) files this Unfair Labor 

Practice Grievance of the Parties (ULP-GOP) against the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD or the Agency) concerning the Agency’s demand to collect information 

from Union officials’ hard drives.  

On May 19, 2023, Samuel P. Stein, Senior eDiscovery Advisor for the HUD Office of General 

Counsel (OGC), demanded access to and a copy of all data on the hard drive (C: drive) of Tracy 

Vargas, Regional Vice President for Council 222 Region 6 and President of Local 3138. Mr. 

Stein gave the reason for copying Ms. Vargas’s data in an email on that date: “OGC needs to 

collect data from your PC’s hard drive (C: drive) for eDiscovery purposes in a potential litigation 

matter. The C: drive data collection is necessary to satisfy eDiscovery obligations as required by 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as part of discovery for anticipated litigation . . . This is 

related to the AFGE Local 222 v. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

litigation.” See Exhibit 1. 

On or about that date, HUD OGC also required access to and a copy of all data on the hard 

drives (C: drives) of AFGE Local 476 Steward Chris Mclennon and Local 476 President Cynthia 

Carter. 

Unfair Labor Practices, Violations of the CBA, and Violations of Other Rules 

In demanding access to and copying or attempting to copy the hard drives of Union officials, the 

Agency committed unfair labor practices by violating the Statute, including but not limited to the 

following: 
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1. 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(1) by interfering with, restraining, or coercing any employee in the 

exercise by the employee of any right under Chapter 71.  

2. 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(2) by discouraging membership in any labor organization by 

discrimination in connection with hiring, tenure, promotion, or other conditions of 

employment.  

3. 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(8) by otherwise failing or refusing to comply with any provision of 5 

U.S.C. Chapter 71. This includes but is not limited to violating 5 U.S.C. § 7102, which 

provides that “Each employee shall have the right to form, join, or assist any labor 

organization . . . freely and without fear of penalty or reprisal, and each employee shall be 

protected in the exercise of such right.”  

Additionally, the Agency violated the CBA, including but not limited to the following Articles:  

1. Article 6, Section 6.02, which provides that “Any employee of the Department shall have 

the right to form, join, or assist any labor organization, or to refrain from any such 

activity, freely and without fear of penalty or reprisal, and each employee shall be 

protected in the exercise of such right.” 

2. Article 48, Section 48.01, which provides that “The parties recognize the need for private 

space for employee representational duties.” Given the transition to digital/electronic 

media for working and storage, “private space” includes computers as well as physical 

rooms and storage cabinets.  

3. Article 48, Section 48.06, which provides that “(1) Union representatives shall be 

allowed use of E-Mail/LAN for representational purposes and for routine Union 

business” and that “(2) E-mail may be used by union representatives to communicate 

directly with Management concerning representational matters; to communicate with 

other union representatives  . . .  and to communicate with bargaining unit employees 

concerning appropriate representational matters.”  

4. Article 51, Section 51.01, which provides that “This Article constitutes the sole and 

exclusive procedure for the resolution of grievances by employees of the bargaining unit 

and between the parties,” and Section 51.15(3), which states, “If the response is not 

satisfactory, the grieving party may refer the matter to arbitration.” 

5. Article 52, Section 52.08, which provides that “The parties shall exchange and discuss 

stipulations, proposed exhibits, and proposed settlement no later than seven (7) days prior 

to the hearing.” 

6. Article 52, Section 52.09, which provides that “The parties shall exchange witness lists 

and also provide them, to the Arbitrator no less than seven (7) days in advance of the 

hearing, and shall include a brief summary statement of the expected testimony of each 

witness.” 
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Agency attorneys also knowingly violated the Rules of Professional Conduct Rule 4.2. Virtually 

all state bars have adopted a form of the American Bar Association (ABA) Model Rule 4.2 of the 

Rules of Professional Conduct. Rule 4.2 provides, “In representing a client, a lawyer shall not 

communicate about the subject of the representation with a person the lawyer knows to be 

represented by another lawyer in the matter, unless the lawyer has the consent of the other 

lawyer or is authorized to do so by law or a court order.” The District of Columbia Bar, the 

Georgia Bar, the Wisconsin Bar, and the Washington State Bar, among others, have adopted the 

language of Model Rule 4.2 as their own rule 4.2 of their codes professional responsibility. 

Government lawyers are generally obligated to follow the rules of professional conduct for the 

bars to which they are admitted and where they practice.  

 

Background 

 

On or about May 19, 2023, the Union was made aware that the Agency was seeking to copy Ms. 

Vargas’s entire hard drive. Ms. Vargas and AFGE Council 222 President Salvatore Viola 

inquired multiple times (such as on May 19 and May 26) about the subject of the litigation that 

prompted the demand for the data. Mr. Stein responded only “AFGE Local 222 v. U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development litigation.”  

As of both May 19 and May 26 and the present, the parties have no litigation in or heading to a 

U.S. District Court that would be titled as such, nor is there any “Local 222” in the HUD AFGE 

organization.  

On May 19 and again on May 30, 2023, Mr. Stein referred the Union’s question about the 

subject of the litigation to James Radcliffe and Deandre Jackson, of OGC. Neither Mr. Radcliffe 

nor Mr. Jackson responded to Ms. Vargas’s or Mr. Viola’s emails to identify the specific topic of 

the litigation. 

Mr. Radcliffe, assisted by Mr. Jackson, is representing HUD in the matter of the Union’s ULP-

GOP regarding Anti-Harassment/Supplement 18. Supplement 18, regarding the Agency’s 

implementation of an anti-harassment policy, is a supplement to the CBA and is incorporated 

into the CBA. The Union has invoked arbitration in this matter, but a hearing has not been 

scheduled yet. As an administrative case, it would be referred to as “AFGE Council 222 (Union) 

and United States Department of Housing and Urban Development,” with a case number.  

On May 30, 2023, Mr. Viola sent an email advising HUD to cease and desist from attempting to 

collect the hard drive data from Ms. Vargas.  

On or about June 1, 2023, the Union learned that HUD also had contacted AFGE Local 476 

Steward Chris Mclennon and Local 476 President Cynthia Carter to collect data from their hard 

drives. 

On June 1, 2023, the Union’s attorney, Stephen Caldwell, sent an email to the Agency denying 

the request to collect data from Ms. Vargas’s hard drive, and directing the Agency to 

immediately return any information that it had already collected. See Exhibit 2.  
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On June 2, 2023, Union officials Salvatore Viola, Ricardo Miranda, and Jerry Gross, with their 

attorney Stephen Caldwell, participated in a conference call with James Radcliffe, Jeana Poloni, 

and Mary Evans of OGC.  

The purpose of the June 2 call was to discuss scheduling an arbitration hearing for the Anti-

Harassment/Supplement 18 arbitration, in which Mr. Caldwell is representing the Union. During 

the phone call, Mr. Radcliffe and Ms. Poloni informed the Union that the Anti-

Harassment/Supplement 18 matter is the “litigation” for which HUD needed to collect data from 

Union officials’ hard drives. 

Mr. Radcliffe also stated during the phone call that:  

• OGC had specifically sent litigation hold memoranda to the Union officials who had 

served on the Union’s Supplement 18 negotiating team.  

• In addition to Ms. Vargas, OGC had contacted Ms. Carter, Mr. Mclennon, and Mr. Viola; 

Mr. Radcliffe was unaware at the time that Mr. Viola is retired from HUD. All four of 

these individuals had signed Supplement 18 on behalf of the Union, as had a fifth 

individual who Mr. Radcliffe knew was retired.  

• Mr. Radcliffe had not replied to Mr. Viola’s or Ms. Vargas’s email inquiries about the 

subject of the litigation because they are represented by counsel, so he is prohibited from 

contacting them directly.  

After the phone conference, Mr. Radcliffe provided the litigation hold memoranda and some of 

the employees’ certifications in response. See Exhibit 3. 

Discussion 

 

Timeliness 

This ULP-GOP is based on the May 19, 2023, demand for access to and copy of all data on Ms. 

Vargas’s hard drive, and similar demands for access to and copies of all data on Ms. Carter’s and 

Mr. Mclennon’s hard drives. The act of demanding to collect data followed the delivery of 

litigation hold memoranda. Although those memoranda were delivered to the affected 

employees—Mr. Mclennon, Ms. Carter, and Ms. Vargas—on or about January 20, 2023 (despite 

being dated December 2022),1 those memoranda set a threatening and coercive tone that carried 

over to the May 19 demands and influenced the employees’ responses to those demands to 

access the hard drives. Furthermore, the litigation hold memoranda prohibited the recipients from 

discussing the matter with anyone else, directing them to “avoid using HUD’s instant messaging 

 

 
1 The litigation hold memoranda were signed by James Froembling, Regional Counsel, Region X, with DocuSign 

date stamps of December 14, 2022 (to Mr. Mclennon), December 15, 2022 (to Mr. Viola), and December 16, 2022 

(to Ms. Carter and Ms. Vargas). 
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to discuss the above-referenced case or parties,” thereby preventing the Union and its counsel 

from learning about the litigation hold memoranda in a timely manner.  

While the litigation hold memoranda were delivered in January 2023, their contents make it clear 

that their application continues through to the present: “Tangible materials or ESI received by 

employees or other individuals subsequent to the date of this letter must be preserved in the same 

manner.” Thus, while the January 20 litigation hold memoranda pre-date the time limits for a 

grievance, their contents are relevant to this grievance.  

Protected, Privileged, and Confidential Union Material 

The contents of Union officials’ hard drives include protected and confidential material such as 

emails and documents related to employees they are representing and topics of representation. 

Union communications with and about the bargaining unit constitute protected activity. 

Demanding to search Union officials’ computers—not only their Agency-provided laptops but 

also on their privately owned devices (see Exhibit 3)—interferes with that protected activity and 

violates confidentiality, thereby interfering with and violating the rights granted under Article 48 

in addition to Section 7116(a)(1) of the Statute. AFGE Council 222 has never waived this right, 

nor has HUD established any overriding need for the information. As Mr. Caldwell noted in his 

email (Exhibit 2), only the Union and not the affected employees acting in their individual 

capacity may waive claims of privilege that belong to the Union. 

Unfair Labor Practices 

The Agency interfered with, restrained, and coerced the affected employees who were exercising 

their rights under 5 U.S.C. Chapter 71 and discouraged membership in the Union by 

discriminating in connection with conditions of employment. The attempt or actual copying of 

data from the employees’ hard drives interfered with their rights to participate in protected 

activities and to maintain the confidentiality of privileged Union information. Mr. Stein wrote in 

an email of May 30, 2023, “We are only collecting the C: drive data for now as a sort of snapshot 

for the sake of preservation.” In other words, the Agency was collecting all of the information 

from the affected employees’ hard drives without limit; this would include extensive records 

about bargaining unit employees and Union matters that are confidential and protected. As Mr. 

Radcliffe admitted in the June 2 telephone call and as the correspondence from Mr. Stein noted, 

the Agency sought only Union materials from AFGE Council 222’s negotiators for Supplement 

18 on HUD’s anti-harassment policy, and they wanted to copy the employees’ entire hard drives 

in order to ensure they captured everything associated with Supplement 18.  

The Agency’s targeting of employees who had served on a Union negotiating team further 

interfered with employees exercising their statutory rights and serves to discourage membership 

in the Union. Asserting that the affected employees had “a duty to preserve all evidence related 

to this litigation,” the Agency knowingly and willfully sought protected information that the 

Union officials had created, gathered, and/or maintained exclusively in the context of and due to 

their Union roles. 



June 5, 2023 

Unfair Labor Practice Grievance of the Parties: C: Drive Data Collection 

 

 

 

6 

Moreover, in attempting to collect information from Union officials about the Union’s activities, 

positions, and strategies, in order to benefit the Agency in an adversarial proceeding, the Agency 

interfered with the Union officials’ rights to act in the interests of the bargaining unit. While 

Agency personnel carrying out Agency-directed assignments may have a duty to preserve 

evidence related to litigation, employees serving as Union officials who are performing Union 

duties have no such obligation with regard to their Union materials. On the contrary, their duty as 

Union officials is to protect the interests and rights of the Union and the bargaining unit. 

The language used in Mr. Stein’s May 19 email was coercive in nature: “necessary to satisfy 

eDiscovery obligations as required by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as part of discovery 

for anticipated litigation.” This intimidating language, with words and phrases such as 

“eDiscovery obligations,” “required,” “Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,” and “anticipated 

litigation” did not appear to leave the affected employees any choice in the matter. That language 

was consistent with the litigation hold memoranda, which asserted that “you, and any other 

individual in possession of materials related to AFGE Local 222 v. U.S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development, FMCS Case No. 231006-00138, have a duty to preserve all evidence” 

and that “it is essential that you take all necessary steps to suspend immediately, and until the 

resolution of this matter, knowingly altering, overwriting, deleting, or destroying any ESI 

[electronically stored information] related to this matter.” The Agency thus prohibited Union 

officials from managing the Union’s own data.2  

Furthermore, the attempt to collect Union data extended beyond copying HUD-issued laptops. 

The litigation hold memoranda compounded the attack on the Union’s right to confidentiality 

and protected material by demanding data from the Union officials’ privately owned devices: “If 

you have saved ESI in any location other than on your HUD desktop PC such as a personal 

laptop, a home computer, a memory stick, or other storage device, you may double click on the 

My Computer icon, then copy the desired files to a CD-ROM” (Exhibit 3). The Agency also 

coerced affected personnel by falsely stating in the litigation hold memoranda that “The duty to 

preserve tangible materials and ESI applies to all employees who have had any involvement in 

the underlying matter” (emphasis added) (Exhibit 3). That duty does not apply to employees who 

were acting in their roles as Union officials, rather than on behalf of or at the direction of the 

Agency. 

The Agency further coerced employees to comply with the demands for Union privileged 

information by threatening any eventual departure from the Agency, whether by retirement or to 

take another position: “In addition, if you are leaving the Department, you must have your 

automated separation clearance in HIHRTS signed by James R. Froembling, Regional Counsel, 

Region X. The automated separation clearance in HIHRTS includes a line item related to 

litigation holds and electronic discovery.” Affected employees thus had their futures threatened, 

 

 
2 The litigation hold notices and subsequent certifications of compliance were riddled with errors. These include, 

among other more serious issues noted above, the reference to Local 222 (there is no such Local; this indicates the 

Agency’s failure to understand the structure of the Agency’s largest union and exclusive representative of 

bargaining unit employees at HUD) and the statement that the litigation hold notices were sent to the recipients on 

January 20, 2022, instead of 2023. 
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either their eventual pensions or possible promotions in other agencies, if they did not turn over 

Union data to the Agency.  

All these acts of targeting and the various forms of interference and coercion created fears of 

penalty or reprisal due to the affected employees’ exercise of their rights to join or assist the 

Union. 

Contract Violations 

Just as the Agency violated 5 U.S.C. § 7116, it similarly violated Article 6 by interfering with 

employees’ rights to join or assist the Union without fear of penalty or reprisal, and by failing to 

afford the affected employees the required protection in their exercise of such rights, as has been 

described above.  

The Agency also violated Article 48 by interfering with the Union’s right to privacy and its right 

to use Agency email and networks for Union purposes while maintaining Union confidentiality. 

Demanding to copy the entire hard drives that store Union privileged material violates the Union 

rights to confidentiality. Even though the hard drives are on laptops issued by the Agency, just as 

the Agency would not break into offices or file cabinets that it provided to the Union for Union-

related use, the Agency would similarly be expected to respect the Union’s digital files and 

materials.  

In asserting that the Agency had the right under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure to copy 

Union officials’ electronically stored data, the Agency violated Article 51, which provides the 

“sole and exclusive procedure” for resolving grievances; the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do 

not apply to the conduct of the Anti-Harassment Policy/Supplement 18 arbitration and to the 

procedures that lead up to the arbitration. Under the Statute at 5 U.S.C. § 7121(a) and (b), the 

procedures in the CBA are “the exclusive administrative procedures for resolving grievances” for 

matters that fall within the CBA’s coverage, and “any grievance not satisfactorily settled under 

the negotiated grievance procedure shall be subject to binding arbitration.” Arbitration is not 

litigation, and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do not ordinarily govern a federal labor 

relations arbitration. Therefore, a litigation hold also does not apply and is not appropriate. 

The Statute contains no provision imposing a duty on a union to respond to information or pre-

hearing discovery requests from an agency. No statutory or other legal right exists that grants a 

federal agency the right to request discovery-type information from a union representing 

bargaining unit employees within the agency.  

The “eDiscovery obligations as required by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure” (Exhibit 1) do 

not apply in the matter of the Anti-Harassment/Supplement 18 arbitration; they especially do not 

apply to Union officials regarding their Union duties and obligations. Instead, Article 52 governs 

the “discovery” rules for arbitrations involving the Union and the Agency. The Agency violated 

those Article 52 negotiated arbitration procedures, which require the parties to exchange—not 

surreptitiously collect—stipulations, exhibits, proposed settlements, witness lists, and summaries 

of expected testimony at least seven days before a hearing. In this matter, the hearing is yet to be 

scheduled and will not take place before late October 2023.  
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The Agency ignored the fact that, in grievance and arbitration proceedings, “discovery” 

generally goes one way: The Union receives information through information requests pursuant 

to 5 U.S.C. § 7114(b) of the Statute; the Union is not required to provide information to the 

Agency other than through the exchange of information pursuant to Article 52. The National 

Labor Relations Act and federal court rules concerning discovery also do not apply to federal 

government labor relations, which instead are governed by the Federal Service Labor-

Management Relations Statute. 

Violations of Other Rules 

Under Article 51, Section 51.01(3) of the CBA, the Union may grieve “Any claimed violation 

. . . of any law, rule, or regulation affecting conditions of employment,” which is also a right 

under the Statute at 5 U.S.C. § 7103(a)(9)(C ). The Agency lawyers involved in the collection (or 

attempted collection) of Union privileged and confidential data knowingly violated Rule 4.2 of 

the Rules of Professional Conduct of the District of Columbia, Georgia, Wisconsin, and 

Washington State bars, among other state bars. Georgia, which is the situs of the arbitration, also 

adds specific language regarding federal government attorneys to Rule 4.2: “Attorneys for the 

State and Federal Government shall be subject to this Rule in the same manner as other attorneys 

in this State.” 

The Agency has been aware that the Union was represented by counsel since approximately 

October 2022, when, in his role as the Union’s counsel in the matter of the Anti-

Harassment/Supplement 18 arbitration, Mr. Caldwell interacted with Ginger Burnett of the 

Agency’s Employee and Labor Relations Division to select an arbitrator. Mr. Radcliffe knew 

that Mr. Caldwell represented the Union in this matter since November 15, 2022, when Ms. 

Burnett copied him on an email informing Mr. Caldwell that Mr. James Radcliffe would take 

over as Agency representative for that arbitration. Mr. Radcliffe acknowledged this in a 

December 7, 2022, email to Mr. Caldwell, introducing himself to Mr. Caldwell as the HUD 

attorney assigned to represent the Agency in the Anti-harassment policy arbitration and inquiring 

about the arbitrator. Mr. Radcliffe had copied Ms. Poloni and Ms. Evans on that email, so they, 

too, were aware that Mr. Caldwell was representing the Union in the matter. Furthermore, the 

email chain clearly identifies Mr. Caldwell as an attorney in his signature block at the bottom. 

See Exhibit 4.  

The Agency therefore knew—well before it sent the litigation hold memoranda to Ms. Vargas, 

Ms. Carter, and Mr. Mclennon in January 2023, and attempted to send a litigation hold 

memoranda to Mr. Viola, an Agency retiree—that it would be inappropriate to contact directly 

the Union officials, as the Union was represented by counsel in the matter. OGC clearly knew 

Mr. Caldwell represented the Union and its officials long before Mr. Stein sent his May 19 email 

directly to the Union officials requiring them to allow the Agency access to confidential, 

protected Union materials. Mr. Radcliffe indicated his awareness of the Union’s representation 

by counsel when he used that fact to excuse his failure to respond to either Ms. Vargas’s or Mr. 

Viola’s May 19 and May 26 requests for more information about the subject of the litigation.  

Thus, the Agency knowingly contacted individuals directly who were represented by counsel 

when it was to the Agency’s advantage to gather information, in violation of Rule 4.2 of the 
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Rules of Professional Conduct. When called upon to answer questions, however, the Agency 

declined to respond to those individuals because they were represented by counsel.  

Conclusion 

The Agency, from December 2022 continuing through to the present, knowingly embarked on a 

series of prohibited activities that constituted a fishing expedition to collect confidential, 

privileged information from unsuspecting employees who served as Union officials. To make 

matters worse, the Agency did not limit its efforts to collect data to material related to the Anti-

Harassment/Supplement 18 arbitration but sought to collect all protected and confidential Union 

data that the affected employees may have stored on their hard drives and on other media and 

even on their own personal devices. The Agency has no right to any documents or copies of 

communication let alone any copies of Grievant-Union communications, which are confidential 

and privileged. In doing so, the Agency surreptitiously hid the true subject of its data collection 

efforts behind the generic and inaccurate case name of “AFGE Local 222 v. U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development litigation.” Finally, the Agency knowingly and intentionally 

directly contacted Union officials represented by legal counsel in order to obtain the information 

it sought—but refused to answer those individuals’ questions about the collection of data based 

on their representation by counsel. 

Meeting 

AFGE Council 222 is not requesting a meeting to discuss this Grievance of the Parties. 

Therefore, in accordance with Article 51, Section 51.15(3) of the HUD-AFGE Agreement, 

please provide your response within 30 days.  

 

Remedies Requested 

 

To resolve this Unfair Labor Practice Grievance of the Parties, AFGE Council 222 requests the 

following equitable relief remedies from HUD Management: 

 

(1) Immediate response to the associated Request for Information, including provision of 

all requested information. 

 

(2) Removal of litigation holds and electronic discovery lines from the automated 

separation clearance in HIHRTS from the accounts of the affected employees, and 

written confirmation from the Agency to the affected employees, the Union, and the 

Union’s counsel, that such holds have been removed. 

(3) A written commitment from HUD that the Agency and its contractors, including but not 

limited to Leidos, will cease and desist immediately from collecting data from the PC 

hard drives of Union officials and former Union officials who may have protected 

Union information on their computers.  

(4) A written commitment that the Agency will respect the confidentiality and privileged 

status of Union digital materials and information, including documents, emails, notes 
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and any other information that is stored on hard drives and other media, including in 

Agency networks and in the cloud.  

 

(5) A written commitment from HUD that the Agency will deliver to Council 222 all hard 

copies and digital copies of the data collected from the PC hard drives of Union 

officials; if the physical copies (either paper or digital drives) cannot be delivered, that 

HUD and its contractors will destroy and not use any data collected from the PC hard 

drives of Union officials. If the data was collected by a contractor, a copy of HUD’s 

written order to the contractor to destroy the contractor’s copy(ies) of the data, and a 

written confirmation from the contractor that it complied with that order. 

 

(6) A written commitment from HUD that the Agency will collect data, or have its 

contractor collect data, for eDiscovery purposes from the PC hard drives of bargaining 

unit employees who are not or have not been Union officials only when the Agency 

specifically identifies the subject of potential litigation and not just the names of the 

parties.  

(7) A written acknowledgment from HUD that the Agency has no discovery rights from the 

Union for any matter covered by the negotiated grievance and arbitration procedures, 

and a written commitment from HUD that the Agency will cease and desist from 

issuing any discovery requests to AFGE Council 222, affiliated AFGE Locals, and 

Union officials acting in their Union roles, for any pending or future grievances and 

arbitration cases. 

 

(8) A written commitment from HUD that the Agency will ensure that when the Agency or 

its contractor collects data for eDiscovery purposes from the PC hard drives of 

bargaining unit employees who are not or have not been Union officials, it will ensure 

that it does not access or collect protected communications between the employees and 

Union officials. 

 

(9) Payment of all arbitration fees and expenses in accordance with Article 52, Section 

52.04 of the HUD-AFGE Agreement should the Union have to pursue arbitration for 

denial of this Grievance of the Parties. 

 

(10) Payment of the Union’s attorneys’ fees should the Union have to invoke and pursue 

arbitration for denial of this Grievance of the Parties pursuant to the Back Pay Act of 

1966 at 5 U.S.C. § 5596(b)(1)(A)(ii) if any AFGE bargaining-unit employee loses any 

pay, allowances, or differentials as a result of the matters covered by this ULP-GOP. 

 

(11) Any other remedy available to the fullest extent of the law, rule, regulation, HUD-

AFGE Agreement, policy, past practice, or arbitrator’s award. There is no provision in 

Article 51 or Article 52 of the Agreement that expressly prohibits changes in remedies 

requested. 

(12) A written agreement, signed by the Agency, that incorporates the above provisions. 
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Exhibits 

 

1. Correspondence related to collection of data from Tracy Vargas’s computer 

2. Cease and Desist message from Stephan B. Caldwell, Legal Rights Attorney, American 

Federation of Government Employees District #5 

3. Litigation hold memoranda and employee certifications 

4. Email correspondence from Ginger Burnett and James Radcliffe to Stephan Caldwell. 
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